
DRAFT MINUTES FOR COMMISSION CONSIDERATION

ENFIELD INLAND WETLANDS AND WATERCOURSES AGENCY
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 1, 2016 – 7:00 p.m.

REGULAR MEETING
Enfield Town Hall- Council Chambers (First Floor)

820 Enfield Street, Enfield, CT 06082 

1. Call to Order
2. Roll Call
Secretary Higley took the roll and present were Chairman Donna Corbin-Sobinski, Vice Chairman Kevin 
Zorda, Secretary Virginia Higley, and Commissioners Carrie-Ann Wagner-Howe and Joseph Muller. 
Absent were Commissioners John Hayes and Robert Chagnon. Alternate Commissioner Joseph Muller sat
for the absent Commissioners. Commissioner Jane Smith arrived at 7:05.

3. Public Participation - Issues not on the agenda - None
4. Correspondence
Chairman Corbin-Sobinski stated that the Commission received Staff Reports for IW# 576, IW# 577, and 
IW# 573 along with an Enforcement Report. The Commission also received an email regarding 840 
Enfield Street, which was an update stating that construction is beginning on the approved project. 

5. Commissioner’s Correspondence (Site Visit Updates – if any)
Chairman Corbin-Sobinski asked for an electronic copy of the bylaws. She also stated that she received a 
phone call from Ms. Maureen Mullen, who lives adjacent to the CREC Public Safety Academy, stating 
that she has not seen a Soils Management Plan for the relocation of the soils in the mound next to her 
house. Chairman Corbin-Sobinski asked that the Commission be updated on the drainage impacts of the 
relocation of the mound soils.

Vice Chairman Zorda asked whether the Town of Enfield would pay for attendance to the CACIWC 
conference on November 12, 2016. 

Mr. O’Brien stated that there are funds for professional development and that the fees would be covered if
Commissioners wanted to attend the meeting. 

6. Approval of Minutes  - October 18, 2016 - Regular Meetings
Secretary Higley made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Wagner-Howe, to approve the minutes of 
the October 18, 2016 regular meeting. The motion passed with a 6-0-0 vote. 

7. Public Hearing(s):
8. New Business:

a. IW# 576 – Site plan application for the construction of 9,760 s.f. building addition located 80
Shaker Road; I-1 Zone (Industrial One); Map 076/Lot 185; Camerota Truck Parts
owner/applicant.(DoR:10/7/2016; MAD: 12/11/2016)

Chairman Corbin-Sobinski stated that the Commission received a presentation at the last meeting.

Secretary Higley asked whether anything had changed on the plans since the last meeting.

Mr. O’Brien stated that the only extra conditions suggested at the last meeting pertained to installing
signage on the property to designate where to stockpile snow and where not to stockpile snow in the
winter time.



Mr. Wentworth addressed the Commission and stated that they have no issues with that condition.

Vice Chairman Zorda made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Smith, to approve IW# 576 with 19
conditions. The motion passed with a 6-0-0 vote. 

b. IW# 577 – Site plan application to replace a 15,860 sf industrial building with a
20,160 sf addition with site improvements located 243 Shaker Road; Zone I-2
(Industrial 2); Map 95/Lot 6; Yankee Casting Company, Inc. owner/ applicant. (DoR:
10/18/2016; MAD: 12/22/2016)

Kevin Vecchiarelli of Yankee Casting Company, along with John Ianny of Highland Soils, LLC, and Jay
Ussery, of J.R. Russo & Associates introduced themselves to the Commission. 

Mr. Ussery presented the application to the Commission explaining that this application is for the
reconstruction of a portion of the building at 243 Shaker that was destroyed in a fire. The proposal is to
replace the portion of the building destroyed with a larger addition to the existing building. The applicant
would also like to reconfigure the associated parking lot and access drive. Mr. Ussery pointed out where
the wetlands, detention basins, and drainage ditches are on the plans. He pointed out that the
reconfiguration of the parking lot and the access drive are within the regulated area on the property. The
middle entry drive of the parking lot in the front of the building will be eliminated. The access drive will
encroach on the wetlands in the rear portion of the property in order to allow access for fire trucks. No
wetlands will be disturbed in the proposed site improvements. 

Secretary Higley asked about the new 12’ x 12’ concrete foundation that is proposed to be poured for the
37 foot tall casting sand structure. She asked how that structure would be maintained. 

Mr. Vecchiarelli stated that the sand tower was originally inside the building. There will be a tower
constructed that encloses the sand tower. 

Vice Chairman Zorda stated that he was concerned that Mr. Ianny put in his report that some of the
casting sand had impacted the upland review area resulting in the loss of a few trees already. He asked
what has been done to contain that. 

Mr. Vecchiarelli stated that the Fire Department had washed a lot of the sand out of that area, and that
Yankee Castings has an agreement with the Connecticut DEEP to gradually remove the casting sand pile
and to not make it any larger. They are currently trying to find something to do with the sand from the
pile, and there is a place in Chicopee looking for fill. 

Vice Chairman Zorda asked what was in the sand.

Mr. Vecchiarelli stated that it is considered a specialty waste because there is a little bit of concrete and
plastic binder within the mixture when they make it. 

Secretary Higley suggested putting silt fence up to prevent the spread of the sand.

Mr. Vecchiarelli stated that they had a silt fence up that got washed away when the fire trucks came
through. They plan on putting another silt fence up as well. 

Commissioner Smith asked whether there will there be any leaching from the sand.



Mr. Vecchiarelli stated that there would not be, and that they are going through environmental testing
with the Connecticut DEEP now. 

Vice Chairman Zorda asked whether the sand was something that will continually be there or not.

Mr. Vecchiarelli stated that they are expanding their building to accommodate potential new equipment
that would allow them to recycle the sand. In the meantime, they are trying to find places to put the
existing sand. 

Commissioner Smith suggested replacing the silt fence to prevent impact to the wetlands, and that the
Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Agency would like to be kept informed of any impacts on the
wetlands as they work with DEEP. 

Mr. Vecchiarelli stated that they have a consultant in charge of handling the work with the DEEP.

Vice Chairman Zorda asked that the Town be supplied a copy of the agreement with DEEP.

Commissioner Smith made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Wagner-Howe, to approve IW# 577
with 20 conditions. The motion passed with a 6-0-0 vote.

9. Old Business:
a. IW# 573 -  Proposed auto repair, used car sales and auto auction at 157 South Road; (Map# 

55/Lot# 82); I-1 Zone; 157 South Road, LLC, owner; Eric Hewitt, applicant  (DoR 7/5/2016; 
two extensions totaling 65 day;  MAD 11/12/2016) – New plans received October 21, 2016.

Chairman Corbin-Sobinski stated that a decision would need to be made today unless the Commission 
wanted to hold a special meeting before the mandatory action date of November 12, 2016. 

Mr. O’Brien explained that this application previously came before the Commission, and the issues that 
caused the application to be tabled included the plans and the narrative being inconsistent, the use of the 
fenced area on the property being unclear, the drainage impact of paving the parking area being unclear, 
and the state of the septic system being questionable. He also explained that this application went before 
the Administrative Review Team, and that the plans and the narrative now match. The septic system was 
approved by the North Central District Health Department as being able to support the grandfathered use 
of the property as an auto body repair shop. If the use of the property was to be intensified, then the septic
system would not be able to support the use. The proposed use of this property is expanded to include 
used car sales, wholesale, and auto auction.

Chairman Corbin-Sobinski asked whether the auto auction would take place on site.

Eric Hewitt, Martin Brogie, Wendall Avery addressed the Commission. Mr. Avery stated that the 
auctions are usually done on the internet.

Commissioner Wagner-Howe asked whether people will be coming to the property for an auction.

Mr. Hewitt stated that dealers usually send someone to inspect the cars that are sold online. The dealers 
are usually from Georgia and North Carolina.

Secretary Higley asked whether all the cars will be stored on site.

Mr. Avery stated that the cars would only be located in the marked parking spaces.



Mr. O’Brien stated that no car storage is allowed in an I-1 zone. Cars can be parked there for a short 
period of time, but storage implies long term. No outdoor storage was a specific condition of approval 
under the original grandfathered approval for use as an auto body repair shop.

Commissioner Smith asked whether the turnover rate was quick for these cars to be moved off the lot.

Mr. Hewitt stated that some get turned over in a day while others may take two weeks. The goal is to try 
to turn them over as fast as possible. 

Commissioner Smith asked if there was always a car in each spot, would that be considered outdoor 
storage. 

Mr. O’Brien stated that it would probably be considered outdoor display, especially if someone is coming
to inspect the cars. The applicant would need a special permit for outdoor display from the Planning and 
Zoning Commission, and then would need to go before the Zoning Board of Appeals for location 
approval. 

Commissioner Smith asked why the septic tank had to be so close to the wetlands.

Secretary Higley asked whether there was availability to connect to the sanitary sewer at that property.

Mr. O’Brien stated that there is room to build a septic tank behind the building and farther away from the 
wetlands. The applicant went to the Health Department using the original change of use application which
did not indicate an intensified use. The Health Department based their original approval of the septic 
system on that original application. Based on new information regarding the proposed intensified use, the 
Health Department stated that the applicant would have to come back again for approval of the septic 
system if there was an intensification of use. So if the Commission were to approve the grandfathered use 
and therefore the septic system, then the applicant would need to come back again for an approval of the 
intensification of use. 

Mr. Avery asked whether there would need to be an annual certification of the septic system.

Mr. O’Brien stated that an annual certification could be a condition if it were acceptable to the Health 
Department, and if it were given to the Planning Department first to then distribute to the Health 
Department and the Commission. 

Mr. Avery asked if the septic system did need to be replaced, then would it need to come back for 
approvals from the Health Department and the IWWA.

Mr. O’Brien stated that it would, and if the applicant wants to agree to come back to the IWWA if the 
septic system ends up needing to be replaced, then it is up to the IWWA to find that acceptable.

Mr. Avery asked if the Health Department is already taking the position that the intensification of use 
may need a new septic system, would there be a need to come back before the IWWA.

Chairman Corbin-Sobinski stated that the applicant would need to come back before the IWWA if there is
to be an impact on the wetlands with the installation of a new septic system. 

Mr. Brogie stated that although there is a wetland delineated close to the septic system on the plans, the 
wetland isn’t functional and is mostly grass lawn. The only functional wetlands nearby are about 100 feet 
west of the septic tank location. There is no current standing water or wetland plants in the delineated 



wetlands. He delineated it as a wetland because there were darker soils deeper in the ground. He also 
stated that there is not a lot of information regarding the leaching trenches associated with the septic 
system.

Secretary Higley stated that the wetlands may not be of high value, but the State does not have degrees of 
wetland value. Also, this septic system is so old that there are no records of it, so if it should fail, then 
there is a high probability of impact to the wetlands. There is also an increase in paving on the property 
because what is currently on the property are millings, which are pervious.

Commissioner Smith asked whether there is a drainage system on site and whether there would be an 
increase in peak runoff from the site. 

Mr. Avery stated that in the post-drainage report supplied to the Commission it says there would be no 
increase in peak runoff because it was previously paved and the paving deteriorated over time. 

Secretary Higley asked whether the cars would be washed off site.

Mr. Hewitt stated that no detailing would take place on site.

Vice Chairman Zorda stated that the Commission could make a condition that if the septic system fails its
first certification, then the applicant would need to come back before them again.

Mr. Hewitt stated that he already had the septic system tested.

Commissioner Wagner-Howe asked if he had the report.

Mr. O’Brien stated that the Planning office received the report late in the day from the Simmons Paving 
Company in the form of a letter saying they tested the septic system and it functioned well enough to 
support the proposed use. It was based on that report that the Health Department made their original 
approval. The Health Department later stated that if the use of the property was intensified, then the septic
system would not be able to handle it. That is why in the draft resolution includes a condition requiring an
initial test and report of the septic system, and then an additional test and report every twelve months 
going forward. It is up to the Commission if they want to add that condition though.

Vice Chairman Zorda asked whether the initial certification would come from the Health Department.

Mr. O’Brien stated that it would.

Vice Chairman Zorda asked whether the applicant has people come to the property to certify cars at the 
auction, and if so, how do they come to the property? Do many people come to the property at one time?

Mr. Hewitt stated that one person per week or even per month would come to the property to certify the 
cars. 

Vice Chairman Zorda asked what the maximum number of people accessing the property at one time 
would be. 

Mr. Hewitt stated that most likely only one person per week would come to the property. Dealers usually 
send someone to take pictures and report on the condition of the cars. It usually takes about 10-15 
minutes. 



Chairman Corbin-Sobinski asked whether any groups of people would be coming to an auction.

Mr. Hewitt stated that there would be no groups of people attending any kind of auction. He also stated 
that if there was an expansion to what is proposed, he would come back before the Commission for 
approvals. There will be two employees plus the applicant working on site. 

Vice Chairman Zorda made a motion to approve IW# 573 with the standard conditions, plus the specific 
condition that if there is an intensification of use on site, then there will be an initial certification of the 
septic system, then another certification six months following that, and then yearly. The recommendations
of the Town Engineer must also be incorporated as part of the approval. Secretary Higley seconded the 
motion. The motion passed with a 5-1-0 vote, with Secretary Higley voting against the approval.

12.      Enforcement Report:

Chairman Corbin-Sobinski requested that 33 Post Office Road be added back to the agenda so the 
Commission doesn’t lose track of it. She also asked whether the Commission was waiting for anything 
further in regards to the replacement of trees at 160 Hazard Avenue.

Vice Chairman Zorda stated that the Commission is waiting for the final planting plans.

Chairman Corbin-Sobinski asked that 160 Hazard Avenue be put back on the agenda as well.

Mr. O’Brien stated that Rick Rachele will continue to write Enforcement Reports for the Commission, so 
it would make the most sense to keep those items under the Enforcement Report section.

Vice Chairman Zorda stated that his would be acceptable. The Commission agreed.

a. 354 and 356 Hazard Avenue Enforcement – Cease & Desist Order in place
b. 348 Hazard Avenue Enforcement

Mr. Rachele stated that there were no updates to the status of 354 and 356 Hazard Avenue or 348 Hazard 
Avenue. He also stated that the truck and backhoe that were previously removed from the wetlands on 33 
Post Office Road are now back on the wetlands, so enforcement action will need to be taken on that. The 
public hearing for 33 Post Office Road comes before the IWWA on November 15th. He also stated that 
the final planting plan for 160 Hazard Avenue will be supplied to the Commission when it is received. 
The Planning office also had to take action on Lia Honda located on Palomba Drive because they were 
parking cars on the grass, which is located in the wetlands. The enforcement was taken through Planning 
and Zoning enforcement as opposed to Wetlands Enforcement. 

Mr. O’Brien stated that Lia Honda had about 68 cars parked on the grass. The grass was left there as a 
conservation area. They also put in a driveway to drive the cars onto the grass. Cars are parked on 
conservation areas at other dealerships along that road as well, but Lia Honda has an application pending 
for the Planning and Zoning Commission for other site improvements. The parking on the grass was 
discovered when the existing conditions plan provided with the application materials did not match the 
previously approved plans for the dealership from 2008. 

Secretary Higley asked whether the Planning office will have them put the driveway back the way it was 
so that it is not paved. 

Mr. O’Brien stated that they would. 



Vice Chairman Zorda asked whether there should be an official notice coming from the IWWA as well so
that it comes back before IWWA for approval. 

Mr. O’Brien stated that the Commission needs to advise the Planning staff on whether they want Lia 
Honda to come before them for approvals. Their Professional Engineer took the position that the wetlands
no longer exist on the property. 

Secretary Higley stated that even if they destroyed the wetlands, they still shouldn’t be parking on the 
grass. 

Mr. O’Brien stated that it is up to the Commission as to whether they want Lia Honda to come before 
them. The wetlands do show up on the Town GIS for that property. 

Secretary Higley stated that it would set a precedent to prevent people from doing this in the future if Lia 
Honda came before the Commission.

The consensus of the Commission was that Lia Honda should come before the IWWA.

13.     Reports of Officers and Committees - None
14.     Report of Director of Planning - None
15.     New Applications to be Received - None
16.     Adjournment
Secretary Higley made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Wagner-Howe, to adjourn. The 
motion passed with a 6-0-0 vote. 


